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A Bi l l  for an  Act relating to fees for the statewide seamless base map. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Dever: Opened the hearing on SB 2334 .  

Vice Chairman Berry, District 27: Testified as sponsor and in support of the b i ll. 

(1 :15)Mike Lynk, Director of the North Dakota Division of State Radio: See 

Attachment #1 for testimony in support of the b i l l .  

(4:20) Chairman Dever: I was hoping that someone that had a better understa nding of 

what you are talk ing about might have some questions so I can develop a better 

understa nd ing. 

Mike Lynk: I would a lso l ike to point out to the committee that page 2 is a deta i led l ist of 

those layers that are in the baseline map that we would be charging a fee for. It wou ld be 

the address point itself, the road centerline layer, and the aeria l photography which sticks 

together into a map .  U ltimately what we end up with is that we are try ing to charge a fee for 

wou ld be photographs of the entire state of North Dakota; it is at one inch resolution .  It is 

the point over the residence that has the geocoded point where the residence is that is 

used for many d ifferent uses and a lso the road centerline which is comprised of the road , 

the speed l imit and a l l  the data that goes with the road. Those are important for 

d ispatching services for the state. 
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Chairman Dever: Who uses the map? 

Mike Lynk: The map wil l  be used by principal ly the 9 1 1  answering points. Right now the 

9 1 1  answering points use their own maps. They either contract from d ifferent vendors or 

they have developed their own maps for d ispatching . We are trying to get to, as a 9 1 1  

community that everyone works off of the same platform.  Right now if someone ca l ls from 

a cel l  phone, you get the GPS location from the phone where that ca l l  is coming from. 

Sometimes if a location has to close then their backup takes their 9 1 1  ca l ls a nd having a 

u niversa l base map helps that situation. A good example of this is in  2009 when Va l ley 

C ity thought they were going to lose their location for flood ing; for us to be their backup at 

state rad io ,  they need to send us mapping data to do that. At that time, they sent us a 

paper map to d ispatch off of. This map was asked to be developed at that point a nd the 

idea is that a l l  9 1 1  locations wou ld use the same map. That is the concept; however , this 

map has many more tentacles that can be reached out to al l d ifferent agencies. The idea is 

that you can put layers over the top of this map of information that can be useful to a nyone. 

For insta nce, over the top of th is map, because of the geocoded GPS is  with in 9 i nches of 

accuracy, you can log points of hazardous materia l spi l ls .  The Secretary of State's office is 

look ing to it to log or put a layer over the top of voting records. The layers are protected 

u nder SB 2 1 15 and what th is addresses is just the map .  

Chairman Dever: Uses by the private sector as wel l  as the public sector? 

Mike Lynk: Yes we bel ieve so. That is why commercia l  vendors wil l  want access to the 

map .  Th is bil l g ives us the opportunity to charge a fee for that map to sell for commercia l 

use. 

Chairman Dever: Is  it better than Google? 

Mike Lynk: We bel ieve so. 
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Senator Schaible: That was my question to the accuracy to the current status of the map 

a nd the system? I am thinking more so of a rura l  area . Has it come a ways in  the past few 

years? 

Mike Lynk: I can speak to what we use at state radio right now. The map that we have at 

state radio in  some locations can be 5 to 7 mi les off of geocoded . (Gives the example of 

the 2 Dick inson g i rls that had gone into the lake and ca l led with the cel l  phone; the geocode 

was way off) 

Senator Schaible: Your opin ion is that the map is very accurate; it is the device that is 

tel l ing you the address? 

Mike Lynk: Right now the variable is the map and the device, but with this map we k now 

we have the accuracy there .  So it would be the device that would be the variab le.  

Senator Schaible: Some of the ca l ls that we get as far as addresses don't seem to match 

the d i rections and the maps that we use. 911  addresses is a great concept except in the 

rura l  s ituation that I am using it has had a lot of problems and a lot of questions. 

Chairman Dever: So the map wil l  show point and how to get there? 

Mike Lynk: There are a lot of things that are happen ing in the 9 1 1  world right now to try 

a nd improve the technology . Through state rad io you may have heard that we have a 

computer related d ispatch. With that, the computers or the veh icles are tied to a GPS.  We 

see on the map where those un its are at  and with the baseline map we wi l l  be much more 

accurate about where those un its are at. And the technology does ex it in  with in the CAD to 

do drive to d irections. 

Senator Nelson: How does Verizon know where we are to a lert of emergency notices? 

Mike Lynk: I n  every phone, un less you shut off the GPS locator, the phone k nows where it 

is at. 
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Senator Nelson: Do you have legal people on staff that is going to chasing the people t hat 

copy t he base map? Who is going to enforce the copyright? 

Mike Lynk: We a re hoping that just the abi l ity to be able to copyright it and t ry to prevent it 

and that honest people wi l l  be honest. Those people that deal in a copyright violat ion, it is 

a crim inal  offense and it could be pursued by law enforcement upon notificat ion . 

Vice Chairman Berry: The map is updated every two years and so some of the funds that 

are a l located are used to keep up and take care of and update th is map. I t h ink every 

b ienn ium t hey are flying lower and lower and gett ing better pictures and increasing 

resolut ion.  Can you speak to t hat? 

Mike Lynk: That is correct. Part of the bi l l  sets up a revolving fund for t hese funds t hat we 

would collect from the commercial industries f rom the fees and then it specifies t hat it is a 

revolving fund and t hose funds can only be used for the maintenance of t he map.  We plan 

to do about 1/3 of the state per bienn ium . That cost is  est imated at $527,000 per b ienn ium.  

We believe that keeping the map up g ives us the best and most accurate data. As soon as 

you start no support ing the map and t he progress, pretty soon it is not beneficia l .  As far as 

t he address codes go,  under statute,  the 911 coord inators for the count ies are obligated to 

get t he addressing updated every 30 days. (shows the committee photo resolut ion example) 

Mike Lynk: T he sooner we can get someone to the emergency you shorten that Golden 

Hour to get t reatment to t he person .  

Chairman Dever: I n  look ing at the f isca l note, it indicates revenues and expend itu res of 

$ 1 00, 000 and I understand that ,  but appropriat ions of $ 100,000 is that because it is 

referred to as a cont inuing appropriat ion? 

Mike Lynk: The fiscal note is our best educated guess. The map wil l  not be completed 

u nt i l  t he summer of 2015 .  There wi l l  not be any chance of col lect ion unt i l  2015 .  We 



Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 233 4 

02/0 7/2013 
Page 5 

estimated t hat we may be ab le to sel l portions of the map if t his bi l l  passes t o  amou nt t o  

a bout $100,000. T hat is a n  educated guess. 

Chairman Dever: I a m  just wonderi ng if we would need to re-refer it to appropriations a nd I 

wi l l  check o n  t hat. 

(20:40) John Val Emter, Resident: Testified i n  opposition .  My question is about 

financi ng . We have a l l  these state a nd federa l  taxes on our phones with 911. W here do  a l l  

t hese funds go? 

Chairman Dever: I appreciate t hat a nd I t hi nk it is way more compli cated t ha n  we have 

time for t hat . I t hi nk t here are other bi l ls out t here to dea l  wit h  t hat. 

John Emter: We have so many bil ls out t here - we don't know which one is which. 

(21 :58) Jack McDonald, North Dakota Newspaper Association and Broadcasting 

Association: Testified i n  opposition to t he bi l l .  We have some concerns a bout what we 

a re creating here i n  the way of pub lic records and I t hi nk it is real ly a confusing sort of t hi ng .  

S B  2115 is the same way. I a m  not sure what commercia l  access is . D o  you have t o  b e  a 

business? If as an  i ndividual want to make use of t his, t hat means I can not get t his. As far 

as the fees a re concerned; some of this is confidential but yet t hey a re wi l li ng to sel l  it . 

Copyright is a civi l action not a cri mina l .  We are not against sea mless maps or  state radio 

a nd we a re not against better maps to provide E MT's a nd ems access. It seems to me t hat 

we a re creating a specia l category of records t hat if you have enough money you can get it 

but if you don't or not commercia l you cannot get it. I a m  not sure we want to do t his with 

state information. T here is not hi ng wrong wit h  paying a fee for state records. 

Chairman Dever: You might suggest different language for t he same purpose? 

Jack McDonald: I would be wil li ng to work with Mr. Lynk on t his. 
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Chairman Dever: Are fees for providing information with the Secretary of State associated 

with the cost of providing that information? 

Jack McDonald: Sometimes yes and sometimes no. There is a general state law that 

allows any state official to charge. There are other laws that allow you to set a certain fee. 

The Secretary of State has a fee established by law. It is  not the fee but who is  eligible for 

it. I am just concerned about the term of "commercial access". 

Chairman Dever: Closed hearing on SB 2334. 
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Chairman Dever: Reopened discussion on SB 2334. 

(2:36)Jack McDonald, North Dakota Newspapers Associations and North Dakota 

Broadcasters Association: See Attachment #1 for proposed amendment .  (Ex plai ned 

amendments . )  

(4:51) The committee discusses with  Jack McDonald what the amendment does and t he 

language regarding whether or not it sti l l  needs to go to appropriations because of the 

monies being deposited i nto that fund .  

(8:40) Senator Schaible: Moved amendment proposed by Jack McDonald. 

Senator Nelson: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent. 

Senator Schaible: Moved a Do Pass As Amended and Re-Referred to Appropriations. 

Senator Nelson: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent. 

Senator Schaible: Carrier. 



Bill/Resolut ion No.: SB 2334 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/29/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 

. 
f f 

. 
t d d t l  eve s an approona tons an tc1oa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 

Cities $0 $0 

School Districts $0 $0 

Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

The director shall establish fees for comme rcial access to statewide base map. Fees collected to be deposited in a 
new fund, statewide seamless base map maintenance fund and may only be used for maintenance cost of the base 
map and distributing data. This fund w ill have a contiruing appropriation. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 does create a f iscal impact for both revenues and expenditures but not unt il the 2015-17 biennium as 
completion is anticipated in 2015. Fees have not yet been established , $100,000 is merely an est imate for 2015-17. 
The estimated cost of ma intaining the base map is approximately $527,000 per b iennium to update 1/3 of the state 
each biennial period. The appropriat ion language in Section 1 l im its the expenditures to the revenue collected. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under �tate fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Revenues created f rom commercial access to the base map will be deposited in the statewide seamless base map 
maintenance fund. Revenues are not included in the 2013-15 executive budget as completion is not ant icipated unt il 
2015. Revenues for 2015-17 a re est imates. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditures are l im ited to revenues collected and w ill 'be expended from the statewide seamless base map in the 
2015-17 through a cont inuing appropriat ion. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts .. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The appropriation of this fund will affect the Office of Adjutant General , State Radio division. It will have a continuing 
appropriation. 

Name: Holly Gaugler 

Agency: Adjutant General 

Telephone: 701-333-2079 

Date Prepared: 01/31/2013 

' ! 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 233 4 

Page 1 ,  after line 6 insert "The statewide seamless base map is an open record. The data 
collected by the director which produces the statewide seamless base map is exempt 
from section 44-04-1 8 and may be accessed solely through a subscription service 
established by the director." 

Page 1 , line 7 ,  remove "commercial" 

Page 1 ,  line 8, remove "All fees collected for access to the statewide seamless base map must 
be" 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 9 through 1 4  with: 

"Changes to fees charged by the division. including schedule of charges. will 
take effect on July first. The director shall announce any fee increases a minimum of 
one year before the effective date. All fees collected through the subscription service 
must be deposited in the statewide seamless base map fund. " 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No.1 

1\JJ 



Date: ___.!._.lo�!:...----
Roll Call Vote #: _ _!...../ __ 

2013 S ENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
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Senate Government and Veterans Affairs 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

· Legislative Council Amendment Number · 

Committee 
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Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 0 Amended � Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By � �b.t Seconded By � fltLW 
Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 

Chariman Dick Dever / Senator Carolyn Nelson ./ 
Vice Chairman Spencer Berry Senator Richard Marcellais / 
Senator Dwight Cook v 
Senator Donald Schaible / 
Senator Nicole Poolman ./' 

Total (Yes) --�(p� _________ No _CJ�----------------
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Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 11, 2013 8:59am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_25_008 
Carrier: Schaible 

Insert LC: 13.8255.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2334: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Dever, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (6 YEAS, 
0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2334 was placed on the Sixth order on 
the calendar. 

Page 1, after line 6 insert "The statewide seamless base map is an open record. The data 
collected by the director which produces the statewide seamless base map is 
exempt from section 44-04-18 and may be accessed solely through a subscription 
service established by the director." 

Page 1, line 7 ,  remove "commercial" 

Page 1, line 8, remove "All fees collected for access to the statewide seamless base map 
must be" 

Page 1, replace lines 9 through 14 with: 

"Changes to fees charged by the division, including schedule of charges, will 
take effect on July first. The director shall announce any fee increases a minimum of 
one year before the effective date. All fees collected through the subscription service 
must be deposited in the statewide seamless base map fund. " 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_25_008 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relat ing to fees for the statewide seamless base map 

Minutes: testimony 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Friday, February 15 ,  2013  at 8: 30 in  
regards to SB 2334 .  Rol l  cal l  was taken . Al l  committee members were present except 
Senator Gri ndberg. 

Tammy R .  Dolan -OMS 
Brady Larson - Legislat ive Council 

Chairman Holmberg there are bi l ls we want to take up right away. We wil l  hea r  t he b i l l .  

M ike Lynk , Director of the NO Division of State Rad io introduced the b i ll and Test imony 
attached # 1. Th is has maps and explains the purpose of the base map. He explained the 
test imony he handed out .  I also handed an amendment , put together between the Division 
and legislat ive council .  The amendment is about the same th ing as the orig inal  b i l l .  
Language was deleted at the committee level in the engrossed bi l l ,  not on purpose. We 
have g iven new language because we worked wit h the newspapers and t he concerns, from 
t heir lobbyist and came up with the language that you see in the eng rossed b i l l .  It works for 
them and for t he department. Test imony attached# 2. 

Senator Warner: could you address the legal ity of copyright and publ ic domain? 

M ike we are exploring copyrig ht , we have done that in the state before, and t here is a 
precedent: the North Dakota map (copyrig hted by North Dakota Depart ment of 
T ransportat ion (DOT)), our intent is to copyright. A commercial appl icat ion of accessing 
th is map would be Google. One ot her point: I talked to the Leg islat ive Counci l ,  on the 
amendment where we have "department" , since it is not defined in  the chapter, we wou ld 
l ike to change that word to "d ivision" 
M ike: t h is map wi l l  be the most detai led map of NO . We are at 9" of accuracy, in some 
parts of the state we are 7 mi les off . In  th is map some of those layers not only of t he map,  
but the aerial pictures themselves, the center l ines and the points are very valuable for 
commercial purposes. The concept of th is b i l l  is that it would open to open records, and 
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business and industry cou ld use this map and use it for profit. We are t rying to set a 
reasonable fee for that, but open it up at no charge to jurisd ict ions. For instance, if the city 
of B ismarck has a cont ract with an engineer, they could get th is data for free. T here are 
cases where the contractor wi l l  get the data and then you would bi l l  the city or t he 
jurisd iction for the data they got for free from the state. So we are t rying to take care of the 
jurisd ict ions but yet obtain a fee to help us with the maintenance of the map. Proposed 
maintenance is we wi l l  redo 1/3 of the state/biennium, and that cost is about $527,000. Th is 
would help offset some of those ongoing costs. 

No other questions.  Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on 2334. 

Senator Mathern moved the amendment with d ivision rather than department .  

Senator O'Connell seconded. 

Discussion 

Senator Warner we are essent ial ly creat ing a special fund that al lows them to keep the 
money for ever and use it for whatever purposes they choose wit hout ever coming back to 
the leg islature? It seems a l ittle bit  odd to be copyrig ht ing publ ic domain informat ion to 
beg in  with .  

Senator Warner the  amendment i s  the cont inu ing appropriation . 

Voice vote in favor of the amendment ,  the amendment carried 

Senator Krebsbach moved do pass as amended 2334. 2"d by Senator Mathern 

A Roll Cal l  vote was taken . Yea: 12; Nay: 0; Absent: 1. 

Senator Schaible from GVA wi l l  carry the bi l l. 

T he hearing was closed on SB 2334 



Amendment to: SB 2334 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211112013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations antiCipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 
' 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 

Cities $0 $0 

School Districts $0 $0 

Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The statewide seamless base map is an open record accessed through a subscription service estabished by the 
director. Fees shall also be established by the director. Fee changes must be set one year prior to July 1. All fees 
collected must be deposited in the statewide seamless base map fund. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 creates a fiscal impact for revenues but not until the 2015-17 biennium as completion is anticipated in 
2015. Fees have not yet been established, $100,000 is merely an estimate for 2015-17. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide df?tf!i/, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Revenues created from commercial access to the base map will be deposited in the statewide seamless base map 
fund. Revenues are not included in the 2013-15 executive budget as completion is not anticipated unti12015. 
Revenues for 2015-17 are only estimates. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

This bill does not address expenditures. As written, any expenditures would need to be appropriated each biennium. 
The biennial cost of maintaining the base map is $527,000 to update 1/3 of the state every two years. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

This bil l  does not include any appropr iat ions. Appropr iations for the statewide seamless base map fund were not 
included in the executive budget. 

Name: Holly Gaugler 

Agency: Adjutant General 

Telephone: 701-333-2079 

Date Prepared: 01/31/2013 

' ' 



Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2334 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/29/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 

. 
f f 

. 
t d d t l  eve s an approona tons an tc1oa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 

Cities $0 $0 

School Districts $0 $0 

Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

The director shall establish fees for commercial access to statewide base map. Fees collected to be deposited in a 
new fund, statewide seamless base map maintenance fund and may only be used for maintenance cost of the base 
map and distributing data. This fund will have a contiruing appropriation. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 does create a fiscal impact for both revenues and expenditures but not until the 2015-17 biennium as 
completion is anticipated in 2015. Fees have not yet been established , $100,000 is merely an estimate for 2015-17. 
The estimated cost of maintaining the base map is approximately $527,000 per biennium to update 1/3 of the state 
each biennial period. The appropriation language in Section 1 limits the expenditures to the revenue collected. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under �tate fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Revenues created from commercial access to the base map will be deposited in the statewide seamless base map 
maintenance fund. Revenues are not included in the 2013-15 executive budget as completion is not anticipated until 
2015. Revenues for 2015-17 are estimates. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditures are limited to revenues collected and will 'be expended from the statewide seamless base map in the 
2015-17 through a continuing appropriation. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts .. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The appropriation of this fund will affect the Office of Adjutant General , State Radio division. It will have a continuing 
appropriation. 

Name: Holly Gaugler 

Agency: Adjutant General 

Telephone: 701-333-2079 

Date Prepared: 01/31/2013 

' ! 



13.8255.02002 
Title. 03000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

/" J ':J February 15, 20 13 J. I ':l 

'fD 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2334 

Page 1, line 2, after "map" insert "; and to provide a continuing appropriation" 

Page 1, line 6, after "fees" insert "- Continuing appropriation" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "will" with "must" 

Page 1 , line 14, after the underscored period insert "Any moneys deposited in the statewide 
seamless base map fund are appropriated on a continuing basis to the division for the 
purpose of paying maintenance and distribution costs related to the statewide 
seamless base map." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No.1 



Date: � .... J� J3 
Roll Call Vote #_.....::1:____ 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

Bl LLIRESOLUTION NO. -----"d-�3:......3,.L---.1Yf--
Senate Appropriations 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken 
I 

Committee 

Motion Made By /(h, j d h<U' J,u Seconded By (Y\"��.,.1 \ "''-'V v 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes vNP 
Chariman Ray Holmberg v/ Senator Tim Mathern � / 
Co-Vice Chairman Bill Bowman r Senator David O'Connell � 
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grind berg n ) Senator Larry Robinson , / 
Senator Ralph Kilzer � Senator John Warner v I 
Senator Karen Krebsbach � 
Senator Robert Erbele / 
Senator T errv Wanzek )/' 
Senator Ron Carlisle / 
Senator Gary Lee v 

Total (Yes) ____ /---=.�__;,___ __ No -�0 _______ _ _ 

A�e� J 
Floor Assignment tra,.b m 1- /-,#�/_ D 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 15, 2013 4:39pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_29_014 
Carrier: Schaible 

Insert LC: 13.8255.02002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2334, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2334 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after "map" insert"; and to provide a continuing appropriation" 

Page 1, line 6, after "fees" insert"- Continuing appropriation" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "will" with "must" 

Page 1, line 14, after the underscored period insert "Any moneys deposited in the statewide 
seamless base map fund are appropriated on a continuing basis to the division for 
the purpose of paying maintenance and distribution costs related to the statewide 
seamless base map." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_29_014 



2013 HOUSE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS 

SB 2334 



2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Fort Union Room , State Capitol 

SB 2334 
March 7 ,  2013 

Job 19605 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relat ing to fees for the statewide seamless base map. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Jim Kasper opened the hearing. 

Senator Berry int roduced the bi l l .  

Rep. Vernon Laning: What is a seamless base map? 

Senator Berry: It's a map of the state that has mult iple overlays for pipel ines, water, 
h ig hways, and various th ings that they can mark down to with in 9 inches. The goal  is to 
have t h is avai lab le for people. 

Rep. Vernon Laning: I s  th is more of a subsurface rather than topograph ical map? 

Senator Berry: It has some of both .  

Mike Lynk, Director of the NO Division of State Radio, (04:2 1-09:31)  test ified in  support 
of the bi l l  (Test imony 1 ,  2) .  

Rep. Marie Strinden: The only money spent is  money taken in  by subscript ions? 

Mike Lynk: We' re est imating about $ 100,000 per biennium. Way to offset t he general  
fund dol lars that would be used. 

Rep. Gail Mooney: Who are the intended subscri bers? 

Mike Lynk: A short l ist is Google,  Bing , Tom-Tom, NavTech , and At las. Current ly the 
dispatch map we use comes f rom NavTech . 

Rep. Gail Mooney: Would local subdivisions have to subscribe as wel l? Or wou ld t hey 
be a part of the governmental agencies that the taxpayers have already paid for it? 



House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2334 
March 7 ,  20 13 
Page 2 

Mike Lynk: That is correct . We don't intend to charge any subdivisions of NO . 

Rep. Gary Paur: But ind ividual cit izens can't use it, correct? 

Mike Lynk: They could subscribe for it. However if they open-record for t he map, under 
open-record rules, t hey wou ld receive a paper copy, not the d ig its. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: What is 44-04- 18? 

Mike Lynk: That is the open record law. 

Vice Chair Randy Boehning: Do ambulances and fire depart ments use computers or 
smart phones? How do they get there? 

Mike Lynk: The base map is simi lar to Goog le Earth .  All of t he peace apps wi l l  point to  
t h is base map because of the accuracy and the photographs are much clearer t han what 
we get from NavTech . When a 9 1 1  call comes in from a land line, we get the residence and 
it's automat ically placed on the map. If it's a cel lu lar phone that has a d ig ita l  device, you' l l  
usual ly get a block to  two blocks d istance range. But if the map isn't in  the right place, it 
cou ld add 5-7 mi les, simi lar to the incident when the young ladies drove into the pond .  

Vice Chair Randy Boehning: The one on my phone loses the topography when t here 
isn't a very st rong signal. Do you need a d ig ital signal to t ransmit th is map to be accurate? 

Mike Lynk: The accuracy is with in the map. It wi l l  be dig ital, resid ing on a server. They 
j ust have to point their system to the server to get th is map, so it's not a del ivery. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: Is the data accessed solely by your subscript ion service? If Goog le 
subscribes and gets th is data, can an average cit izen go to Google and find somebody? 

Mike Lynk: If Google purchased th is map, they would get a much more detai led map than 
t hey current ly have. I t  is wort h  it for them to pay a subscript ion fee to improve their service. 

Rep. Scott Louser: This map already ex ists. We are look ing at sel l ing it to subscribers 
who m ight want the data. But the people that need the data, l ike emergency services, 
already have access to it. 

Mike Lynk: The end of th is map is in  2015.  It's not deployed yet . We are wel l  along t he 
way of developing th is map. With  th is bi l l, we' re t rying to get in  front of it . By next session, 
we would be past the point .  

Rep. Steven Zaiser: Why do you need the open records protect ion for th is? 

Mike Lynk: The layers are exempt from the open records law. The d ig its t hey can get 
under the open record .  It's a paper copy. We're t rying to  protect the  d ig its .  The layers 
have informat ion in there that is protected. So you can get an address layer on t he 9 1 1  
service, which is in  th is map, but that's not protected. But when you t ie the name, phone 
number and address together, that is protected under open records. 



House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2334 
March 7 ,  20 13 
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Vice Chair Randy Boehning: Are you going to be putting p ipel ines and so forth into the 
map? 

Mike Lynk: Yes. This can be used for many appl ications. For instance, you can p ut 
critical inf rastructure on there ,  l ike where the valves on the gas l ines are. You don't want to 
have that open to the pub lic, but it can be layered over th is map.  

Rep. Karen Rohr: My concern is the privacy issues. The emergency responders al ready 
have the information they need to do their job .  What will p revent a subscriber f rom getting 
ahold of p rivacy information and sell ing it? 

Mike Lynk: All we' re talk ing about in th is b ill is the map itself . It's not the information other 
than the information that is l isted on the base part of the map.  

Rep. Karen Rohr: But  by 2015 the needs may change. Then will i t  come back here to 
address privacy or will someone make sure that doesn't occur? 

Mike Lynk: We believe it's al ready taken care of in the open records law. 

Chairman Jim Kasper: What d iscussions have you have as fa r as costs to compa n ies to 
sub scribe, costs to ind iv iduals to subscribe, and if c itizens of N D  are al ready paying for th is, 
why should they have to pay for the use of it? 

Mike Lynk: We haven't looked at the cost. The depa rtment charges for 9 1 1  fees, law 
enforcement terminals in their cars , and other fees. This mirrors the process of a min im um 
of a year in advance we set the fee, then go to the interim committee that deals with p ubl ic 
safety and present the cost, and get their concurrence that the costs are just. So it is not 
without going through the leg islative process in these matters. 

Chairman Jim Kasper: You gave us 5 companies that you th ink are potential users .  You 
ind icated your cost per b iennium is $527,000. Are you looking at $ 100,000 fee for a 
company to have access? You have to have some idea of what your fees will be to cover 
your  costs. 

Mike Lynk: We're not look ing at getting the total amount. We' re trying to subsid ize the 
amount the state would have to cover. If there is a market for it, we can readjust the fee .  
I n  2008 we bought the NavTech data that we' re currently using. For 18 months i t  was 
$22 ,800. That's the k ind of range we were look ing at. We need to do some surveys. 

Chairman Jim Kasper: Would the ind iv idual subscriber have the same access as 
compan ies? 

Mike Lynk: Yes they would . 

Chairman Jim Kasper: So an ind iv idual subscriber could be anyone of us? 
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Mike Lynk: Yes, you could subscribe. If you wanted to open-record the map, you would 
get a p rinted map .  

Chairman Jim Kasper: But we would not have access to go on the internet and use it l ike 
Goog le Earth where you can see th ings. 

Mike Lynk: There is the GIS hub in the state that th is information wil l  flow through so if 
you have access th rough governmenta l agenc ies, you can get the map itself in d ig its . 

Chairman Jim Kasper: So th is wi l l  not be l ike Google Earth where you can look down at a 
p iece of p roperty or house? This doesn't have that capabi l ity? 

Mike Lynk: That is correct. 

Rep. Steven Zaiser: I have some concerns for p rivacy. When you open it up  to other 
compan ies, l ike contractors, how would you protect th is from the privacy rights? 

Mike Lynk: It's in layers and those wou ld be protected . The actua l base map that we' re 
ta lk ing about in th is bi l l  is a flat map with an address, the roads and the aeria l photogra phy. 

Rep. Steven Zaiser: Some of those consumers wi l l  have access to those data points. 
Wouldn't some of those open up opportun ities for inappropriate delving into p rivacy issues? 

Mike Lynk: The th ings on the map are a l ready ava i lab le in a phone book . 

Rep. Gail Mooney: What I am hearing is you have the abi l ity to h ide or p rotect certa in 
layers, simi la r  to a complicated Photoshopped photo. Is  that a simi lar  approx imation? 

Mike Lynk: That is exactly correct. 

Chairman Jim Kasper closed the hearing.  

Rep. Marie Strinden moved a Do Pass. 

Rep. Scott Louser seconded . 

Roll Call Vote: 

Yes: 1 1  

No: 2 

Absent: 1 

A carrier wi l l  be assigned later. Attachment 3 was submitted to the committee on 3-8-13 .  

Chairman Jim Kasper adjourned the committee. Rep. Marie Strinden is the carrier. 



Amendment to: SB 2334 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/1812013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 

Cities $0 $0 

School Districts $0 $0 

Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The statewide seamless base map is an open record accessed through a subscription service estabished by the 
director. Fees sha ll also be estab lished by the director. Fee changes must be set one year prior to Ju ly 1. A ll fees 
collected must be deposited in the statewide seamless base map fund. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Section 1 creates a fiscal impact for revenues, expenditures and appropriations but not until the 2015-17 biennium 
as completion is anticipated in 2015. Fees have not yet been established, $100,000 is merely an estimate for 2015-
17. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Revenues created from a subscription fee for accessing the base map will be deposited in the statewide seam less 
base map fund. Revenues are not included in the 2013-15 executive budget as comp letion is not anticipated until 
2015. Revenues for 2015-17 are only estimates. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

This bill provides a continuing appropriation and estab lishes a new fund, the statewide seam less base map fund. A ll 
expenditures from this fund are limited to paying maintenance and distribution costs related to the statewide 
seamless base map. The biennial cost of maintaining the base map is $527,000 to update 1/3 of the state every two 
years. No FTE positions are affected. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

This bill creates a continuing appropriation for the statewide base map fund. Appropriations for the statewide 
seamless base map fund were not included in the executive budget as the base map will not be completed until 
20 1 5. 

Name: Holly Gaugler 

Agency: Adjutant General 

Telephone: 701 -333-2079 

Date Prepared: 02/20/201 3  



Amendment to: SB 2334 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211112013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations antiCipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 
' 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 

Cities $0 $0 

School Districts $0 $0 

Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The statewide seamless base map is an open record accessed through a subscription service estabished by the 
director. Fees shall also be established by the director. Fee changes must be set one year prior to July 1. All fees 
collected must be deposited in the statewide seamless base map fund. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 creates a fiscal impact for revenues but not until the 2015-17 biennium as completion is anticipated in 
2015. Fees have not yet been established, $100,000 is merely an estimate for 2015-17. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide df?tf!i/, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Revenues created from commercial access to the base map will be deposited in the statewide seamless base map 
fund. Revenues are not included in the 2013-15 executive budget as completion is not anticipated unti12015. 
Revenues for 2015-17 are only estimates. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

This bill does not address expenditures. As written, any expenditures would need to be appropriated each biennium. 
The biennial cost of maintaining the base map is $527,000 to update 1/3 of the state every two years. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

This bil l  d oes not include any appropriat ions. Appropriat ions for the statewide seamless base map fund we re not 
included in the executive budget. 

Name: Holly Gaugler 

Agency: Adjutant General 

Telephone: 701-333-2079 

Date Prepared: 01/31/2013 

' ' 



Bill/Resolut ion No.: SB 2334 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/29/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 

. 
f f 

. 
t d d t l  eve s an approona tons an tc1oa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 

Cities $0 $0 

School Districts $0 $0 

Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

The director shall establish fees for comme rcial access to statewide base map. Fees collected to be deposited in a 
new fund, statewide seamless base map maintenance fund and may only be used for maintenance cost of the base 
map and distributing data. This fund w ill have a contiruing appropriation. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 does create a f iscal impact for both revenues and expenditures but not unt il the 2015-17 biennium as 
completion is anticipated in 2015. Fees have not yet been established , $100,000 is merely an est imate for 2015-17. 
The estimated cost of ma intaining the base map is approximately $527,000 per b iennium to update 1/3 of the state 
each biennial period. The appropriat ion language in Section 1 l im its the expenditures to the revenue collected. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under �tate fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Revenues created f rom commercial access to the base map will be deposited in the statewide seamless base map 
maintenance fund. Revenues are not included in the 2013-15 executive budget as completion is not ant icipated unt il 
2015. Revenues for 2015-17 a re est imates. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditures are l im ited to revenues collected and w ill 'be expended from the statewide seamless base map in the 
2015-17 through a cont inuing appropriat ion. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts .. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The appropriation of this fund will affect the Office of Adjutant General , State Radio division. It will have a continuing 
appropriation. 

Name: Holly Gaugler 

Agency: Adjutant General 

Telephone: 701-333-2079 

Date Prepared: 01/31/2013 

' ! 
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Roll Cal l Vote #: 

2013 H OUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
R OLL CALL VOTES . 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. /2!3 3 <j 
House Government and Veterans Affairs 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

0 

Committee 

Action Taken: 00 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended D Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

¢A- '' /1 
Motion Made By � Seconded By -==-----------------

Representatives Yes No Representatives 

Chairman Jim Kasper )L Rep. Bil l Amerman 
Vice Chairman Randy Boehning )(. Rep. Gail Mooney 
Rep. Jason Dockter 7- Rep. Marie Strinden 
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Rep. Ben Koppelman '/-
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Rep. Gary Paur '>t.. 
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� 

� 

Total (Yes) // No 2..-------------�.�---- --�-------------------------

Absent ' 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 11, 2013 4:57pm 

Module 10: h_stcomrep_ 42_019 
Carrier: Strinden 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2334, as reengrossed: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Kasper, 

Chairman) recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT 
VOTING). Reengrossed SB 2334 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the 
calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 42_019 



2013 TESTIMONY 

SB 2334 



T EST IMONY - SB 2334 
SENAT E COMMITTEE - GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS 

FEBRUARY 7,  2013 
BY M I KE LY N K  

D I RECTOR, D IVISION OF STAT E RADIO 

Mr.  Chai rman and members of the committee , my name is  Mike Lynk. I am t he Di rector of 
t he North Dakota Division of State Rad io. 

The statewide seamless map is comprised of the base map and informat ional layers 

overlaying the base map. Under changes proposed by the Department ,  the informational 

layers wi l l  be considered conf ident ia l  and protected f rom publ ic d ist ribut ion.  

The base map is composed of aerial  pict ures d ig ital ly st itched together, dig ital centerli ne 

data ( i .e .  add ress ranges , speed l imits ,  and road names) , and a d ig ita l  geocode address 

point that produces a very accurate nine inch error rate geocode map of North  Dakota .  

The informational layers for 911 publ ic safety services wi l l  include add ress and resident ial 

i nformation,  combined wit h the address point used by al l  publ ic safety answering points 

(PSAP's) in  North  Dakota .  

SB 2334 authorizes the Department of Emergency Services to establish an appropriate fee 

for commercial  access to the base map and establ ishes a revolving fund to be used to 

maintain  the map. There wil l be no charge to Nort h  Dakota governmental  jurisdictions. 

Language mi rrors N .D .  C .  C .  54-17.4-12 (State geologist - Col lection of g lobal posit ion ing 

system data - Fee). The Department of Emergency Services also plans to copyright the 

base map to prevent addit ional dist ribution.  

I ask committee support and wil l  respond to quest ions . 



NODES Seamless Basemap Composition 
The North Dakota 9-1-1 Seamless Basemap consists of three Geographic I nformation Systems {G IS) 

layers: 

• Add ress Points 

• Road Center l ines 

• Aerial Photography 

Address Points: 
The address point layer  is essentia l ly a point that is placed on top of each 

addressable structure .  The database fie lds within this layer conta in  fie lds 

for address, city, state and phone nu m ber. 

Notes: 

8 6 24T AVE SW 

Address point data for rura l  a reas a re very unique or rare because the cost of developing this type of 

dataset is high. Add ress point datasets a re a l so d ifficult to mainta in because of the change frequency 

and the a ssociated costs. 

Road Centerlines: 
The road centerl ines a re a l ine feature that conta in road name 

and address ra nge info rmation for each l ine segment. 

Notes: 

The North Dakota Seam less Basemap road centerl ines are the 

most comprehensive and the most accurate the state has to 

offer (especia l ly within the rura l  a reas). Together with the 

address points the road centerl ines make an outstanding 

navigation I routing product. 

Aerial Photography 
To deve lop this project in a cost effective manner it was decided to uti l ize one foot resolution aeria l  

photogra phy (Co l lected by the North Dakota Department of Transportation) to d igitize both the road 

centerl ines and the address points from .  After th is  data has been acquired off of the high accuracy aeria l  

photogra phy it is then fie ld verified by a consultant (GeoComm I nc. )  



PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2334 

Page 1 ,  l ine 7, before the first "The" insert "The statewide seamless base map i s  an open 
record. The data collected by the director that produces the statewide seamless base map 
is exempt from section 44-04- 1 8  and shal l only be accessed through a subscription 
service establ ished by the director." 

Page 1 ,  l ine7, after "for" delete "commercial" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 8 after "map." Remove "Al l  fees collected for access to the statewide 
seamless base map must be" 

Page 1 ,  remove l ines 9 through 1 4  

Page 1 ,  l ine 8 after "map" insert "subscription service. Changes to fees charged by the 
division, including schedule of charges, wi l l  take effect on July first. The director shal l 
announce any fee increases a minimum of one year before the effective date. A l l  fees 
col lected through the subscription service must be deposited in the statewide seamless 
base map fund"' 

Renumber accordingly 



TESTIMONY - SB 2334 
S ENATE COM M ITTEE - SENATE APPROPRIATIONS 

FEBRUARY 15 ,  2013 
BY M I KE LYN K 

DI RECTOR, DIVI S ION OF STATE RADIO 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee , my name is Mike Lynk. I am the Director of 
the North Dakota Division of State Radio. 

The statewide seamless map is comprised of the base map and informational layers 
overlaying the base map. Under changes proposed by the Department , the informational 

layers will be protected. 

The base map is composed of aerial pictures dig ital ly stitched together, dig ital centerline 

data (i .e. address ranges, speed l imits , and road names) ,  and a dig ital geocode address 
point that produces a very accurate nine inch error rate geocode map of North Dakota. 
The informational layers for 9 1 1  public safety services wil l include address and residential 
information, combined with the address point used by al l  public safety answering points 
(PSAP's) in North Dakota. 

SB 2334 authorizes the Department of Emergency Services to establish an appropriate fee 
for a subscription service to the base map and establishes a fund to be used to maintain 
the map. There wil l be no charge to North Dakota governmental jurisdictions. The 

Department of Emergency Services also plans to copyright the base map to prevent 
additional distribution. 

I urge committee support and wil l  respond to questions. 

I 



NODES Seamless Basemap Composition 
The North Dakota 9-1-1 Seam less Base map consists of three Geographic I nformation Systems (G IS) 

layers:  

• Address Points 

• Road Centerl ines 

• Aeria l Photography 

Address Points: 
The address point layer is essentia l ly a point that is p laced on top of each 

addressable structure .  The database fields with in this layer conta in  fields 

for address, city, state and phone number. 

Notes: 

8 6 24TH AVE SW 

Address point data for rural a reas are very un ique or  rare because the cost of developing this type of 

dataset is high. Add ress point datasets a re a lso d ifficu lt to maintain because of the change frequency 

and the associated costs. 

Road Centerlines: 
The road centerl ines a re a l ine feature that conta in  road name 

and address range info rmation for each l ine segment. 

Notes: 

The North Dakota Seamless Basemap road centerl ines are the 

most comprehensive and the most accurate the state has to 

offer (especial ly with in  the rura l a reas). Together with the 

address points the road center l ines make an outstanding 

navigation I routing prod uct. 

Aerial Photography 
To deve lop this project in a cost effective manner it was decided to uti l ize one foot reso lution aerial  

photography (Co l lected by the North Dakota Depa rtment of Transportation) to d igitize both the road 

centerl ines and the address points from.  After this data has been acqu i red off of the high accuracy aeria l 

photography it is then field verified by a consu ltant (GeoComm Inc.)  
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P ROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B ILL NO.  2334 

F I RST EMGROSSMENT ( 13 .8255.02000) 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 14 after "fund . "  insert "Any moneys deposited in  the statewide seamless 

base map fund a re appropriated on a continuing basis to the department for the 

purpose of paying maintenance and d istribution costs related to the statewide seamless 

base map" 

Renumber accord ing ly 



TESTI MONY - SB 2334 
HOUSE COMMITTEE - GOVERNMENT AN D VETERANS AFFAI RS 

MARCH 7, 2013 
BY M I KE LYN K 

D I RECTOR,  DIVIS ION OF STATE RADIO 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is  Mike Lynk.  I am the Director of 
the North Dakota Division of State Rad io. 

The statewide seamless map is comprised of the base map and informational layers 

overlaying the base map. Under changes proposed by the Department (SB 2 1 15),  the 

informational layers wi l l  be protected . 

The base map is composed of aeria l pictures d ig itally stitched together, d ig ital centerl ine 

data ( i.e. address ranges , speed l imits, and road names) , and a d ig ital geocode address 

point that produces a very accurate n ine inch error rate geocode map of North Dakota . 

The i nformational layers for 9 1 1  publ ic safety services wil l  include address and residential  

information ,  combined with the add ress point used by al l  publ ic safety answering points 

(PSAP's) in  North Dakota . 

SB 2334 authorizes the Department of Emergency Services to establish an appropriate fee 

for a subscription service to the base map and establ ishes a fund to be used to maintain 

the map. There wi l l  be no charge to North Dakota governmental ju risdictions. The 

Department of Emergency Services also plans to copyright the base map to prevent 

additional d istribution .  

I urge committee support and wi l l  respond to questions. 
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NDDES Seamless Basemap Composition 
The North Dakota 9-1-1 Seam less Basemap consists of three Geographic Information Systems (G IS) 

layers: 

• Address Points 

• Road Centerl ines 

• Aeria l  Photography 

Address Points: 
The address point layer is essentia l ly a point that is placed on top of each 

addressable structure.  The database fie lds within this layer contain fie lds 

for address, city, state and phone number. 

Notes: 

816 24TH AVE S 

Address point data for rural a reas are very unique or rare because the cost of developing this type of 

dataset is high. Add ress point datasets a re a lso d ifficu lt to mainta in  because of the change frequency 

and the associated costs. 

Road Centerlines: 
The road centerl ines a re a line feature that conta in road name 

and address range information for each l ine segment. 

Notes: 

The North Da kota Seam less Basemap road centerl ines a re the 

most comprehensive and the most accurate the state has to 

offer (especial ly with in  the rura l a reas). Together with the 

address points the road centerl ines make an  outstanding 

navigation I routing prod uct. 

Aerial Photography 
To deve lop this project in a cost effective manner it was decided to uti l ize one foot reso lution aerial 

photography (Co l lected by the North Dakota Department of Transportation) to d igit ize both the road 

centerl ines and the address points from.  After th is  data has been acqu i red off of the h igh accuracy aeria l  

photography it is then fie ld verified by a consu ltant (GeoComm Inc.)  
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